
 
 

Town of Mint Hill 

 
John M. McEwen Assembly Room 

4430 Mint Hill Village Lane 

Mint Hill, North Carolina 28227 

 

Mint Hill Planning Board Agenda 

March 21
st
, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. Call To Order 

 

2. Roll Call and Invocation 

 

3. Approve Minutes of February 15
th

, 2015 Regular Meeting 

 

4. Additions or Deletions of Agenda Items 

 

5. Reports of Committees, Members, and Staff 

 

6. Old Business 

 

7. New Business 

 

A. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC16-2, Filed by Meeting Street Companies LLC, Requesting 

an Exception to the Downtown Code for Property Located at Brighton Park, Tax Parcel Numbers 

13538524 - 13538555, 13538401 - 13538423. 

 

8. Other Business 

 

9. Adjournment  



48 
 

MINUTES OF THE MINT HILL PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

February 15
th

, 2016 

 

 

The Mint Hill Planning Board met in regular session on Monday, February 15
th

, 2016 at 6:30 

p.m. in the John M. McEwen Assembly Room, Mint Hill Town Hall. 

 

ATTENDANCE 

Chairman: Tony Long 

Vice Chairman:  Tom Gatz  

Members: Chip Todd, Roy Fielding, Scott Fandel 

ETJ Members: Roger Hendrix  

Absent:  Brad Simmons 

Planning Director: John Hoard 

Commissioners: Mickey Ellington 

Clerk to the Board: Candice Everhart 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND INVOCATION 

Chairman Long called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., declared a quorum present and the 

meeting duly constituted to carry on business. Mr. Hendrix gave the invocation.  

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

Approval of Minutes of January 25
th

, 2016 Regular Meeting:  Upon the motion of Mr. 

Fielding, seconded by Mr. Hendrix, the Board unanimously approved the minutes of the January 

25
th

, 2016 Planning Board. 

 

Reports of Committees, Members and Staff:  Mr. Hoard stated that the Board of 

Commissioners approved the Text Amendment to the Downtown Code as well as Mr. Long’s 

rezoning request.  

 

Old Business:  None. 

 

 

New Business:  
 

A. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC16-1, Filed by Sam’s Real Estate, 

Requesting Conditional Zoning to Allow a Car Wash for Property Located at 9230 

Lawyers Road, Tax Parcel Number 135-221-09.  Mr. Hoard asked the applicant to give 

his presentation. John Ross, President of Eagle Engineering in Indian Trail introduced 

himself along with Padman from Sam’s Real Estate. Mr. Ross stated, the site at 9230 

Lawyers Road is three acres. To the east and north of the parcel there are commercial 

properties, one corner is residential and the other is institutional. We have developed a 

site plan which shows site circulation, parking, landscaping and water.  One comment we 

received was the concern of stacking the cars before the pay station and that backing up. 

There are twenty-two spaces there so we see no issue with stacking the vehicles. We are 



49 
 

reserving fifty-nine feet from the road as noted in the Mint Hill comprehensive plan. The 

function of the plan in bound from Lawyers would be to enter at the pay station then 

move into the tunnel. Patrons may pull over to either side to vacuum or stop. There is 

parking for employees and room for trucks. The water and sewer is available along 

Lawyers Road and 90% of water will be reused or recycled. The materials used will be 

brick, stucco and metal panels. We will have state of the art equipment and the chemicals 

used are environmentally sensitive. Sam’s Express is heavily involved with community 

service and our proposed development with help with the Town’s commercial property 

taxes. 

 

Mr. Hendrix asked Mr. Hoard have the special requests have all been met? Mr. Hoard 

said, yes they have met all of the guidelines. 

 

Mr. Hendrix asked, is there a timeline? Mr. Ross said, as soon as we are approved we 

will move forward with the permits and construction documents. 

 

Mr. Fielding asked, is the residential area to the northeast?  Mr. Ross said, there is a 

residential area diagonally from one corner. 

 

Mr. Fielding said, is this similar to the one by UNCC off of 49? Mr. Ross said, 

operationally yes it is similar, but architecturally no it is different. 

 

Mr. Fielding asked, are there future plans for gas pumps? Mr. Ross said, no there are no 

future plans for that. 

 

Mr. Todd asked, what are the peak times of this facility? Mr. Padman Nadimi introduced 

himself. He said the hours of operation are from 9:00am til 7:00 pm. The busiest times 

are Saturday and Sunday and also at lunch time during the week days. 

 

Mr. Todd asked, will there be tall lighting?  Mr. Nadimi said, there will only be yard 

lights. 

 

Mr. Fielding made a favorable recommendation on  #ZC16-1, Filed by Sam’s Real 

Estate, Requesting Conditional Zoning to Allow a Car Wash for Property Located 

at 9230 Lawyers Road, Tax Parcel Number 135-221-09. Mr. Hendrix seconded the 

motion and the Board unanimously agreed. 

 

B. Discussion regarding permitted uses in the I-G district:  Mr. Hoard said, I am 

bringing this to the table from the discussion we had at last month’s meeting. We can 

have a full on discussion or we can setup a workshop. If your main concern is just with 

experimental laboratories then we can write a text amendment for that. 

 

Mr. Fielding asked how many local jurisdictions have byright?  Mr. Hoard said all of 

them have byright. They may just call it something different. 



50 
 

Mr. Fielding asked, with the general industrial district they will be able to be used in 

byright? Yes, said Mr. Hoard. The applicant would come to me with an idea of what they 

want to do and we would look at this and make sure if falls correctly.  

 

Mr. Fielding said, you can look at all of these and they are such generalized terms, that 

there can be positive or negative things about them.  Mr. Hoard said, what we are looking 

at here is that this is a land use decision. When you think more environmentally then you 

are looking at more of a regulation. What I’ve experienced with the railroad, is that there 

are lots of agencies that have already looked into the regulations. 

 

Mr. Fielding asked, when would we come in if it was going to cause harm to the 

environment?  Mr. Hoard said, for example, a radio TV station came to us and said they 

wanted to build one here. If there are environmental issues they would be brought up on a 

county or state level due to regulations that they already have set forth.  

 

Mr. Todd said, if we pull one item I think that we need to pull quite a few. Mr. Hoard said 

I know laboratories were mentioned quite a bit. Was there anything else? 

 

Mr. Hendrix said, I think beginning at laboratories and ending at photo processing needs 

to be removed completely and placed under conditional or special requirements. The 

level of those uses needs to go through a process to be allowed since they would all use a 

type of chemical.  Mr. Hoard said, special requirements are still byright. The difference is 

that we outline particular rules. For example, this carwash we had four specific rules for 

car washes that they had to meet.  

 

Mr. Hendrix said, okay then I would make it conditional. 

 

Mr. Fielding said I would be concerned about storage warehouses and yards. 

  

Mr. Todd said, even with retail nurseries they could have chemical runoff.  Mr. Hoard 

said, I can write up a text amendment and take it to the Board of Commissioners if that is 

what you all would like. 

 

Mr. Fandel said all of them have a chemical nature to them. 

 

Mr. Hendrix said, I personally have a problem with the ones I mentioned. 

 

Mr. Todd said, I have an issue with sign painting and the nurseries due to runoff. 

 

Mr. Fielding said, I would be concerned on storage warehouse and yards. 

 

Mr. Hendrix asked, John did you say with this we could put explanation? For instance we 

would say, inside or outside storage, we can define that further?  Mr. Hoard said, our 

attorney would shy away from building regulations within a definition, but we could 

certainly look at it. 



51 
 

Mr. Fielding asked, we have storage warehouse and yard, then right below there is 

contractors office, so they could split the property and do both right? 

Mr. Hendrix asked, wouldn’t that be wholesaling?  Mr. Hoard said, we’ve come across 

that issue before and you’re correct Mr. Fielding. 

 

Mr. Hendrix asked, didn’t you say that a lot of Towns are going away from byright?  Mr. 

Hoard said, I think more towns are leaning towards CD. I have been in meetings with 

other towns and we all said it seems less and less rights for property owners and more 

conditional zoning.  

 

Mr. Fielding asked, as a citizen and employee, we are trying to keep the well-being of the 

Town at heart. Would you leave all of these in there or would you be more cautious? Mr. 

Hoard said, over time I have become to believe more in byright. If you build a good land 

use plan and zoning properly I think it works. There are of course flaws and concerns 

always. 

 

Mr. Hendrix asked, who came up with the definition? Mr. Hoard said, it was a mixture of 

the towns. It was first adopted in 1922 and has developed over time.  

 

Mr. Hendrix asked, how does our byright categories fair against other towns around us?  

Mr. Hoard said, there are similarities and differences, but there are over 500 towns in 

North Carolina so if there were some you wanted to compare I could do that research. 

 

Mr. Todd asked, what does this do for us if we go through and define these? Mr. Hoard 

said, I think we need to look at some of these because there are issues with a few. 

 

Mr. Hendrix asked, you’re going to be looking at this from a town perspective? Mr. 

Hoard said, yes, particularly storage buildings. 

 

Mr. Hendrix motioned to table the discussion until the Town could bring something 

forward in a Text Amendment format. Mr. Fielding seconded the motion and the 

Board unanimously agreed. 

 

 

Other Business:  None 

 

 

Adjournment: Upon the motion of Mr. Fielding, seconded by Mr. Hendrix, and unanimously 

agreed upon, Chairman Long adjourned the meeting at 7:12 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

_________________  ___ 

Candice Everhart 

Program Support Assistant 



Page 1 of 1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

  

CASE:  ZC16-2 

EXISTING ZONING O-A DO-A (CD) 

PROPOSED ZONING N/A  

PROPERTY OWNER: MINT HILL PARTNERS, LLC 

APPLICANT MEETING STREET COMPANIES, LLC 

LOCATION BRIGHTON PARK (LOTS 236-251, 192-207, 213-235) 

TAX PARCEL NUMBER 13538524-13538555, 135384401-13538423 

REQUEST: EXCEPTION TO THE DOWNTOWN CODE 

 

 

 APPLICATION SUMMARY: 

 

The applicant is requesting an Exception to the Downtown Code—specifically 4.3(2) B.1 

 

Sixty-five (65) percent of residential building walls shall be of brick or stone; a maximum of thirty-five (35) percent of 

front and rear facades may be of wood clapboard, wood shingle, wood drop siding, primed board, wood board and 

batten, cementitious fiber board, masonry stucco or approved vinyl. End walls of corner units shall be brick.  

 

Exceptions to the provisions of this Ordinance (except for Permitted Uses and Excluded Uses) may be approved as 

a Conditional District rezoning approval by the Board of Commissioners upon a recommendation by the Planning 

Board. In granting a Conditional District rezoning approval as an exception to these provisions, the Board shall first 

determine that: 

a. No practical design alternatives exist; and 

b. The variations/exceptions requested are consistent with the purpose and intent of this District as well as 

Section 1.2 General Building Design Guidelines. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF CONTACT: 

 

Planning Staff 

704-545-9726  



Hove Rd

Eva
ns 

Rd

Patriots Hill Rd

Wh
ite

haw
k H

ill R
d

Coventry Commons Dr

Bri
ght

on 
Par

k D
r

Tutor St

Ke
mp

tow
n S

qua
re 

No
rth

Sus
sex

 Sq
uar

e N
ort

h

Sus
sex

 Sq
uar

e S
out

h

ZC16-2 Existing zoning: O-A DO-A (CD)
Proposed zoning: O-A DO-A (CD)

Site area: 2.66 acres

[ 0 0.05 0.10.025 Miles

Lawyers Rd

Idlewild Rd

Bla
ir R

d

Fairview Rd

Matth
ews-M

int 
Hill R

d

Brief Rd

Cabarrus Rd

Lebanon Rd

Arlington Church Rd Indian Trail Rd

[
Produced by the Mint Hill 

Planning Department
2/12/2016



Brighton Park
Rezoning Application

MeetiDg Streete 
HOMES & COMMUNITIES 



Brighton Park
Rezoning Application

This rezoning is for the remaining townhome lots in the Brighton Park subdivision in Mint Hill. The current 
lots are sitting vacant and are located in the Downtown Overlay district. There are currently 54 lots that 
vary in width from 18 ft. to 22 ft. We are proposing 44 larger units that are 24 ft. wide and average 2000-
2100 sq. ft. with master bedrooms on the main floor and 2 car attached garages. The zoning is currently 
DO-A (CD) and this application is for a conditional zoning approval, which would still classify the zoning 
as DO-A (CD). The conditional approval we are requesting has to do with the use of exterior materials 
as it pertains to the Unified Development Ordinance (U.D.O.) section 7.4.4.3.2.B.1, which states that 
“Sixty-five (65) percent of residential building walls shall be of brick or stone”.

We are proposing that our buildings would meet all of the architectural requirements that are stated in 
the U.D.O. except for the 65% brick requirement. We would be using fiber cement materials (Hardieplank 
ColorPlus) on the exterior of the homes for the siding and for all of the trim on the overhangs including 
fascia, soffit, and frieze boards. We would not be using any vinyl material on the exterior. Pictures of the 
elevations that we are proposing are included in the following pages and are a very close representation 
of the elevations we will actually build.  
 
Materials we will use on all home exteriors include:
•	 HardiePlank Color Plus lap siding
•	 HardiePlank Color Plus trim on windows, doors and on all eaves - including fascia, soffit and frieze 

board (no vinyl or aluminum will be used)
•	 Brick to grade foundations with rowlock cap
•	 Architectural 30 year shingles



Architectural details used per 
building elevations:

•	 Dormers
•	 Recessed front door entries
•	 Partial and full front  

porches with metal roofs
•	 Planter boxes
•	 Functional shutters on 

hinges with shutter dogs 
(louvered and paneled)

•	 Reversed gables with 
accents

•	 Dentil moulding
•	 Iron railing
•	 Round downspouts on the 

fronts of home with  
collection boxes

We believe the use of the siding fits most appropriately with the surrounding 
architecture, specifically the homes facing our vacant lots. The best compliment to 
existing siding homes, their architectural style and appearance would be our large 
townhomes with siding. Furthermore, the use of different siding colors would fit in 

perfectly with existing color schemes in the community.



-------------~eetingStrrete------------~ 
H OMES & COMMUNITI ES 



-------------~eetingStrrete·------------~ 
H OMES & COMMUNITI ES 



Front porches that are 8 ft. deep.   Flower boxes with window trim.

Recessed front door with pediments with  
operable shutters, with hinges and shutter dogs.

Dormers per plan and round downspouts  
with collection boxes.

We at Meeting Street take pride in producing architecture that has symmetry and includes the use of 
historically accurate details and features. We feel the use of these materials and features are important to 

the overall experience of visitors and residents and that this effort will blend nicely  
into the Brighton Park community.

Gable with accents. Brick steps and foundation with rowlock water 
mark and iron railing where applicable.



An aerial view of the three  
different sets of lots that are  

included in our project and would finish 
out the townhome portion of the  

Brighton Park subdivision. Below are 
images of the single family homes 
along Evans and Hove Roads and 
show the style of architecture our 

townhomes would be facing. Perhaps 
built under previous zoning which  

did not have the brick requirement, 
these homes are predominately siding  

with brick/stone foundations.  
Our siding elevations with brick  

foundations would compliment these 
existing homes nicely.



Plan Actual

~----------Mee~Strrete----------~ 
H OMES & COMMUNITI ES 



Meeting Street® 
HOMES & COMMUNITIES 

Brighton Park Rezoning 

Proposed Exterior Materials on All Homes: 

1) HardiePlank Color Plus lap siding 
2) HardiePlank Color Plus trim on windows, doors and on all eaves - including fasica, 

soffit and frieze board (no vinyl or aluminum) 
3) Brick to grade foundations with rowlock cap 
4) Architectural30 year shingles 

Architectural details per plan: 

5) Dormers 
6) Recessed front door entries 
7) Partial and full front porches with metal roofs 
8) Planter boxes 
9) Functional Shutters on hinges with shutter dogs (louvered and paneled) 
10) Reversed Gables with accents 
11) Dentil Moulding 
12) Iron railing 


	March 21st Agenda
	February 15th, 2016 Minutes
	ZC16-2

